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The Halfway Hous=--An O28ls for Travellers

In 1918 an historic old building or the London and Fort
Stanley Gravel Road (now No. 4 highway) was destroy=d by fire.
It wes 2an ancient host@gzgg locat=8 in the 5th Concesssion of
Yarmouth, & short distance south of the Ontario Hospltal--on
the east side of the Highway.

The old structure, gt the time of the fire, was known as
Wiener's Halfwzy House--being locat=d about half-way between
St. Thomas and Union, the next refreshment stop available to
travellers enroute to or from Port Stanley by road. The bullding
wes construct=d about 1859 bg.gggn Widdifield, whose fanily in
1824 bought the land orn which the old bullding stood. At first
it was named the Widdifi=1ld House.

It was a two-storey, ractangular brick structure wuth a
two-storey verandah scross the entire front toward the Gravsl
Rosé; The seneral corstruction conformed to what has been
named the Loyalist style of Ontario architecture that was
popular in Upper Canada in batt%: buildings during the period
1800 to 1835. It had two s=mi-circuler windows in the gable
emés‘iﬂsteaé'of the more usual single window found in this style
of building, Its roof had a wide overhang with rsturned cornices
in the earlier manner of the Georgian type of building that was

built befors the Loyaslist style became popular. Its large

windows in both storeys hadé twelve panes in each half of the



window. This style of gzlazing also datss the bullding to when
glass makers were limited to this small size of sheet., Larzer
slz=g produc=d too mucﬁ br=akage and distortion during manfacture,

The water supply also dates the structure. An old style
wooden pump was located a fzw yards to the rorth of the verandah
ané was convénient for watering horsss as well as travellers
when stopping off for refreshments.

A study of the land titles to this propsrty carries us
back to the esarly days of Yarmouth Township in its pre-Talbot
era. When Colonel Talbot arrived in Canada after servics with
General Simco=, he had decided to give up 2 life at Court and
to embark orn an ambitious colonizing enterprise., Perhaps he
didn*t realize in his own miﬁé the extent to which this work
might develon. He carried lettzrs from the Imperial Govern-
ment Authorities represented by Lord Hobart, to the Bovsrnor
of Upper Canadsa, authoiizing the grant of a block of 5,000
acr=g at some point that Talbot might select. 5,000 acresg
was the customary land grant to fiesléd offic=rs., Talbot descided
that he would like to havs hisgs =2rant ir Yarnouth Township, thé
finest lands on the north shore of Lake Erie., In Yarmouth, too,
it would be near the mouth of the largest stream in the County,
which would make a good harbour and whoss stream would provide
g nunmber of good mill =it=s,.

Howevear, a detailéé examination of the previous grant in
Yarmouth revealed that large scctions. of the Township had

besn granted to the Baby Family (pronounced Baw-bes) of the



Sanéwich District. 8Sinece he could »not find a 5,000 ascre block
in Yarmouth he was forced to go west to Dunwich, whsre another
crsek entered the Leke. This location was soon given the
courtesy name of Port Talbot., It was near the mouth 6f this
ereck thet Talbot built hise first home in the district anéd fro
which he manaz=d his vast colonizing work that became in his n
his persoral principality.

The lands on which the old Hotel was bullt was a part of
Baby lands, the first Crown patents having been issued on the
24th of July, 1799, and assign=d to John Baptiste Baby. In
1820, Baby sold lots 4, 5, 8, 9, and 15.in the 5th Concession
to Jonathon Doan of the Sparta District. Jonathon was the
father of Joshua Doan of the Sparta District who met a tragie
and undeserv=d end in the political unpleasantn=ss of 1837.
Baby's appointment of ths elder Doan as his Xiigrnr ie dat~d
the 1hth of October, 1820, and recorded in the Rigistry Office
as ?ﬂtrg No. 293. Unéer this power of attornsy Doan sold Lot
b to Widdifield in 1824 for seventy-five pounds.

N 1T In 1859 a2 member of the Widdifield Farn 1‘7 gavs a morigage

1
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;an gaome 140 scr=s of Lot 4 to the Honourabls Georse Goodhue,
Ssveral of the Goodhue Fanily had previously located in the
Villae= of 8t. Thomas encaged in various snt-rprises. One was
g local medical practition=sr with an office on Centre Street Wo
Dr. Coyne says that G=orge Goodhus moved to Westministsr Town-
ship near London and amassad a substantial fortuns in his
business dsalinss, It was for the sum §3185.00 and Widdifield

undertook to pay to Goodhuz r=gular instalments on prinecipsl
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and to pay intesrest on any unpaid balancs at thz rates of 24%
per annum. Truly, the Honourahle Georgs Goodhue was a pro=-
genitor of the modern [inance company whose geeningly in-

nocuous interest rates, it carefully worked out,. will often be

found to approximste 24%. Colonel Talbot once wrot= to a friend

about what he called "the Jews of merchants that prey=d on his
gsettlers.”

Later Widdifield sold a part of these lands~to Charles
Wiensr in 1870. The portion sold was that occupied by ths
roadside inn. Wiener changsd the name of the place to Wiener's
Halfway House and under this name he carried on business for
Ehe next forty-eight years, till its destruction by fire in
1918. 1Its menagement eventu=lly devolved on his sons Frank and
Charles,

The old institution plaved a‘uwet urimportant part in the

gocial activities of s=veral 8t. Thomas groups during this later

period. The St. Thomas Gun Club mades it 1its hesadquarters and,
on oceasion, held international pigeonr shoots on ths property.
Its old tlub house is now us=d as a garage by the Wisner family,
8#till residents on the property. It was also the r=andezvous
for a local hicvelas club whose members after peddling miles
over dusty township roads required some throat relief as an
urgent nart of the day's programme,
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mmﬁhyg‘Wiemer was a lover of good horseflesh and faced a prize
g
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f“horse named wister Jane, an exceptionally fime looking b=ast,

He enjoyed a2 brisk drive through the countryside with his



favourite horse pullinz a fine carriaze that may still be seen
on 8t., Thomas str=ets, driven by its owner, a horse fancier
who purchased it froﬁ its former ownsrs.

The old Hotel buillding was nevar rebuilt aft-r ths 1918

fire., The o0ld stone family hom= in thes rear of the property is

..3‘

somewhat moderniz=d and still s=rves sg the fanlly fesidence

for the Wiener son who still lives here, It may b2 noticsd that
thig stone building has much gquarry stone on its face toward the
Highway but on the other face more fieldstone is us~d. The
familv tradition says that when the firet Court House was
onstruct=d, after the separation of ths Elgin from Middl=sex,

that the stone for its constructuon was hauled form Port Stanley
to 8t. Thomas ov=r the olé road., There is no guarry store avail-
able in th= “Yountv., It is told that the teamst=rs, as mizht be
exp=cted, would stop at the old Inn for a spot 6f "throat relief."
It was customary for them on these refreshment stops,tbo toss off
a ecouple of pleces of quarry stone in part payment. When these
were assemblad they were used on the front of the fanmily home
when it was built. As there was not enough to complet= it,
fieldstone was ugsed o1 the other fac==.

The prop=rty is now owned and worked by Frank Wiener, a
direset descendant of ths original Wiensr, who pruchased the land
a century ago and who plaved miwm= host to many of our old=r
regidents at the Half-Way House on theilr proper occasions.

Much of the met=srial from which this sﬁory hasg heen made

was from notes sgubmittsd as g recs

i

earch projsect of Jossph Wiener,



a student of the Arthur Voaden Secondary School, a study
sponsored by the Trustees of the Elgin Historical Society.
He was encouraged in his researches by the head of the

History Department of that School, Mr. Joseph Bannon.
We Co Miller with Joseph Wiener.
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